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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Trovinger Mill is located along Trovinger Mill Road, abouf
one mile north of Maryland Route 64 and about three miles east
of Hagerstown in Washington County, Maryland. It is situated
along the east bank of the Antietam Creek with its east gable
facing the road.

The mill is’ constructed of roughly coursed local field-
stone. It is five bays in length with the mill race running
underneath it about midway along its broad side. At the peak
of the east gable is a date stone marked 1771 with the initials
J. R. The stone work at the exterior of the building shows a
number of seams in the walls probably indicating several
periods of building. A vertical division line in the stone is
evident just west of the mill race. A horizontal seam in the
masonry is evident about eight feet above ground level,
running along the north, west, and south walls west of the
race. Within this area there is evidence that window openings
in the north and south walls have been raised about one foot.

Most of the windows and doors in the east, north, and
west walls of the building are topped with segmental arches.
Other openings have no decorative stone work over their lintels.

The openings in the north and south walls for the race
are lined with coursed upright stones forming a segmental arch.
Many early timbers and milling machinery can be observed in
the race.

The windows are framed with wide wooden members which are
secured with pegs. The openings are located at random on all
sides of the building although few are present in the south
wall.

Doors are framed similarly to the windows with entrances
located at ground level at the east and west ends of the north
wall. At the main story doors are located in the east gable
end and in the second and fourth bays of the west wall. A
door is located within the east gable at the attic level.

Just above this door a large beam protrudes to carry a block
and tackle.

The ends of the roof at the gables are finished with a
tapered barge board. The roof extends beyond the north wall
of the building several feet to cover the remains of an eleva-
ted walkway which gives access to the second story openings.
The roof covering is sheet metal under which can be seen
earlier wooden shingles. Two small gabled dormers are present
on the south side of the roof.

The mill race remains intact with concrete side walls
near the building. Nearby is the site of a new mill which is
said to date later than the grain mill. Also present are the
abutments of a bridge which crossed the Antietam at the mill
as part of an eighteenth century road leading from Hagerstown
to the 014 Forge about 1 1/2 miles upstream.

The mill is at present vacant and is in deteriorated
condition. It stands on a tract containing 2.23 acres.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Trovinger Mill, originally Jacob Rohrer's Mill, is
significant for its architecture and for its contribution to
early commerce in Washington County. A dated example of
Washington County's eighteenth century architecture, the mill
has received no significant alterations since 1771. Much of
the original woodwork remains as well as a significant part
of the milling machinery. Functioning as an early business,
the mill represents an important part of the early economy
of Western Maryland. A large number of mills were in operatioi
along the Antietam Creek during the eighteenth century (at
least ten are shown on a 1794 map), an indication that milling
was a major industry in the area. Unfortunately few of these
mills are standing today.

There is considerable evidence to suggest that Jacob
Rohrer's establishment was among the earliest of the mills on
the Antietam. The seams in the masonry of the building
indicate that an earlier one-story structure may have been
present before 1771. The physical evidence of an earlier
mill is supported by documentary references in patent records
of Frederick County. The mill stands on land which was part
of a 817-acre tract called "Nancy's Contentment," patented to
John Rohrer on May 10, 1768. Apparently Nancy's Contentment
included six smaller tracts which were granted to Jacob Rohrer
Among these six parcels were a ten-acre tract, "Jacob's
Welfare," granted in 1747; "Defiance," for 100 acres dated
1750 and "Addition to the Mill" a 30-acre tract patented in
1761. The name "Addition to the Mill" would suggest the
presence of a milling operation at the time of that patent.
Jacob Rohrer owned property on the banks of the Antietam as
early as 1739, and in a patent of 1747 reference is made to
Jacob Rohrer's dwelling. This documented information supports
the possible existence of a pre-1771 mill. The mill was in
the Rohrer family until 1817. The Trovingers who operated
the mill from 1875 to 1910 contributed only the present
name of the structure to its history. It continued func-
tioning as a grist mill into the twentieth century although
during the immediate past it has been vacant. The current
owner is planning repairs and renovation.

The 0ld mill is situated along an eighteenth century

road which led from the mill west to Hagerstown and north

(See continuation sheet)
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-

tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been

evaluated according to the c-iteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:
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Trovinger Mill

The concrete sidewalls mentioned on the clarification
sheet belong to the mill race and were not considered in
the worksheet as part of the actual mill building. However,
since the Trovinger Mill form was submitted, the owner
has made several alterations including the addition of
dormers. Thus the "unaltered" designation no longer applies
to this property.

According to currect tax maps, the bridge abutments
are included in the property.

The areas of significance checked in the original
copy of the Trust worksheet were "architecture" and "commerce"
Therefore, I really cannot contribute anything concerning
the designation of "industrial archaeology," other than
to say that there would probably be potential for archaeological
research.
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#8 Trovinger Mill, continued

to the Hughes forge and mill (both demolished) farther up the
Antietam. Much of this road has been obliterated by farming

and development, but parts of it are still discernable, and its
route can be tracted along much of its length. Other eighteenth
and early nineteenth century buildings are present along the

road.
In addition to its historical and architectural merit, the

Trovinger Mill is significant for its scenic value.
Note: Information from Rohrer land grants complied by
Howard L. Spessard, Hagerstown, Maryland.
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